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BOARDS’ REPORT

To the Members,
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the Twelfth Boards’ Report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of Northern Arc Investment Managers

Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:

In line with the work and ecosystem created by our parent company named Northern
Arc Capital Limited, Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited ("NAIM” or
“the Company”) facilitates investments that ensure easy access-to-finance for companies
that have a demonstrable track record in increasing the penetration of financial services
in India. Our investment strategy is centered around making impact-oriented yet
returns-focused investments in several key financial inclusion themed sectors, such as
Microfinance, Affordable Housing, Small Business Loans, Vehicle Loans, Agri-business
Loans and Corporate Finance. NAIM presents sustainable solutions to investors through
our Alternative Investment Funds (AIFs’), by providing multiple investment strategies
(single/multi-sector focus), varying tenures (ranging from 3.5 years to 10 years) and
liquidity preferences (regular coupon pay-outs or bullet payments) and Portfolio
Management Services (PMS).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The financial performance of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, is
summarised as below:

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars Ason March 31,| AsonMarch31,
2025 2024"

Income 5240.69 4582.33
Less: Expenditure 5921.93 3564.92
Gross profit before depreciation -681.24 1017.41
Less: Depreciation for the year 0 0.12
PBT (Profit/(Loss) before Tax) -681.24 1017.41
Less: Provision for tax (Current year) 299.43 250.79
Less: Deferred tax -467.77 48.62
PAT (Profit/(Loss) after Tax) -512.90 718.00
Profit brought forward from previous year 5,025.31 4297.63
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Less: Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve 0 0
Less: Reclassification of remeasurement of net 316 9.68
defined benefit liability ' '
Balance carried forward to balance sheet 4,515.57 5025.31

*Note: The corresponding figures for the financial year ending on March 31, 2024, have been restated in
accordance with the requirements of IND AS 8 to correct the presentation error in the reported financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. Consequent to such correction of error, there has been no
impact on the reported loss, total comprehensive income, earning per share for the year ended and total
equity as at March 31, 2024.

SUMMMARY OF OPERATIONS:

During the year under review, the net revenue from operations of your Company is Rupees
(X) 4,617.11 lakhs as against the previous year Rupees (X) 3,823.77 lakhs.

For the Financial Year 2024-25, your Company’s Profit after Tax stood at Rupees (X)
(512.90) lakhs vis-a- vis a Profit after Tax of Rupees (X) 718.00 Lakhs in the previous
year.

The net worth of your Company as on March 31, 2025, stood at Rupees (X) 4,876.57
lakhs as against Rupees (%) 5,386.31 lakhs as on March 31, 2024.

Your Company does not have any subsidiary or an associate company or a joint venture
company during the financial year 2024-25.

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of your
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year and date of this
report. We also hereby confirm that there has been no change in the nature of business
of your Company.

DIVIDEND:

Your directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2025.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

There was no amount proposed to be transferred to the reserves. For complete details on
movement in Reserves and Surplus during the financial year ended March 31, 2025,
please refer to the Statement of Changes in Equity included in the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

Authorised Share Capital:
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The authorised share capital of your Company as on March 31, 2025, was X 30,00,00,000/-
(i.e. Rupees Thirty Crores only) categorised into equity share capital of X 15,00,00,000/-
(i.e. Rupees Fifteen Crores only) divided into 15,00,000 equity shares of X 100/- each and
preference share capital of X 15,00,00,000/- (i.e. Rupees Fifteen Crores only) divided into
15,00,000 preference shares of X 100/- each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company as on March 31, 2025,
was X 3,61,00,000/- (i.e. Rupees Three Crores Sixty-One Lakhs only) divided into
3,61,000 equity shares of X 100/- each.

During the year under review, your Company has not issued any further shares.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS / BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

Northern Arc Investment Managers: Scaling Credit. Multiplying Impact. Shaping the
Future.

A Decade of Purpose, Powered by Performance

Over the last decade, Northern Arc Investment Managers (NAIM) has carved a distinctive
path in India’s private credit landscape. Born as a niche platform in FY 2014-15 with a vision
to bridge the yawning credit gap for mid-market enterprises, we have evolved into a
pioneering fund management institution with a reputation for innovative, structured,
and impact-aligned debt solutions.

We began our journey with a X100 crore microfinance-focused fund. Today, we manage
%3,152 crore in AUM across six active funds and 2 PMS strategies. Behind these numbers
lies a deeper story—of resilience, relevance, and relentless pursuit of financial inclusion and
sustainable returns.

Our investment philosophy integrates two powerful engines:
e Performing Credit: Delivering strong risk-adjusted returns through disciplined

underwriting and robust portfolio construction.

o Impact Investing: Catalyzing real-world change by directing capital to enterprises
often overlooked by formal finance—early-stage, undercollateralized, or high-
potential businesses driving inclusive growth.

This dual-lens approach—financial rigor fused with social purpose—has enabled us to
deliver a weighted average XIRR of 14.57% across matured funds, all without a single
instance of capital loss for our esteemed underlying investors.

A Platform Built on Scale, Trust, and Innovation

Our growth journey is defined by diversification, governance, and track record:



N®RTHERN

ARC

e 14 investment products launched to date—12 AIFs and 2 discretionary PMS
mandates.

¢ 6 funds successfully closed, all delivering ahead of target returns.
e Cumulative deployment exceeding 312,000 crore.

e Over 1000 unique investors served, spanning HNIs, corporates, family offices, DFIs,
and offshore investors.

e In all exited funds, Zero capital loss to any underlying investors. No fund
extension. 100% on-time distributions over the last decade.

Our offerings span a broad spectrum—f{rom open-ended Category III funds and Cat II debt
structures to bespoke accounts through PMS strategies, leveraged fund strategy, and offshore
solutions, including our landmark GIFT City platform for global investors.

FY 2024-25: Consolidation, Innovation, Momentum
This fiscal year marked a strategic inflection point in our journey.

e 6 active funds under management, with strong inflows across all strategies.
e Raised over X200 crore for the Northern Arc Finserv Fund, nearing its final close.
o Landmark offshore raise of 245 crore from DFC, doubling our offshore footprint.

e X520 crore in the pipeline for our upcoming leveraged GIFT City fund, the
Northern Arc Blue Horizon Fund.

e Four new AIFs launched, reinforcing our ambition to lead across risk-return
spectra—from stable performing credit to selective special situations and asset-
backed lending.

Looking Ahead: The Decade of Global Credit Leadership

We now stand on the cusp of an exciting future—one that goes beyond managing capital
to mobilizing transformation.

Our vision for the next decade is clear: for India bound global credit assets, we aspire to
become their gateway to India, and for domestic investors, we plan to be a preferred and
reliable credit solutions provider. We aspire to redefine credit fund management in India by
setting new standards in transparency, diversification, credit governance, and purpose-
driven investing.

Strategic Priorities for the Future:

1. Deepen Core Strengths
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o Expand in performing credit through diversified, sector-specific funds with gross
return targets across 10%, 12.5%, 15%, and 17.5%.

o Explore measured entry into special situations and asset-backed finance,
while steering clear of distressed and real estate exposure.

2.  Amplify Impact

o Double down on impact-oriented funds in financial inclusion, MSME lending,
education, healthcare, clean energy, and sustainable livelihoods.

3. Go Global

o Build offshore investor access through GIFT City, with leveraged fund structures
tailored for international LPs.

o Strengthen institutional ties, following our breakthrough collaboration with DFIs
and larger offshore investors.

4. Fuel Innovation & Resilience
o Leverage tech-enabled credit underwriting and ESG-aligned monitoring.

o Invest in internal capabilities for more agile, data-driven investing with global
relevance.

Final Word: From Credit Capital to Capital for Change
At Northern Arc Investment Managers, credit is not merely a product—it is an enabler of
growth, resilience, and empowerment. As a platform, we are uniquely positioned at the

intersection of financial markets, real economy enterprises, and impact-driven capital.

Our investors place their trust in us for one reason—we don’t just promise yield, we deliver
certainty, integrity, and purpose.

As we begin this new chapter, we carry forward a powerful legacy—and an even more
powerful ambition: to scale with integrity, to perform with conscience, and to become a
globally admired credit institution where impact is not a trade-off, but a multiplier.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

DIRECTORSHIP CHANGES:

Appointment

During the financial year, the appointment of Mr. Pardhasaradhi Rallabandi (DIN:
10054672) as the Non-Executive Director was approved by the shareholders at its
Annual General Meeting held on September 23, 2024.

Retiring by rotation:
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In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Articles of Association of your Company, Mr. Chaitanya Pande (DIN: 06934810) Non-
Executive Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(AGM) and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Necessary resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Chaitanya Pande, the brief resume and
other related information have been detailed in the Notice convening the AGM of your
Company. Your directors recommend his re- appointment as the director of your
Company.

Retirement:

Mr. Theodoor Brouwers (DIN: 08261000) Independent Director, retired as a member of
the Board of directors of the Company on account of completion of his tenure effective October
20, 2024.

Your directors placed on record its sincere appreciation for Mr. Brouwer’s invaluable support,
insightful advice, and steadfast guidance during his tenure. His contributions were instrumental
in fostering resilient growth in Company’s performance.

Resignation:

Mr. Nicholas Moon (DIN: 07725967) resigned from the post of the Non-Executive Director of
the Company effective from the close of business hours of April 30, 2024, on account of pre-
occupation.

Your Company places on record its appreciation for the assistance and guidance provided by
Mr. Nicholas Moon during his tenure as Non-Executive Director of the Company.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP THAT HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Change in designation:

The tenure of Dr. Kshama Fernandes (DIN: 02539429) as a Whole-time Director
designated as Executive Chairperson expired on March 31, 2025. The Board of Directors
of Northern Arc Capital Limited (the Holding Company of the Company), at its meeting
held on February 14, 2025, proposed to extend the tenure of Dr. Fernandes for a period
of one financial year i.e., from April 1, 2025, to March 31, 2026 and to redesignate her
position in the Company to Non-Executive Non-Independent Director from Whole Time
Director - Executive Chairperson. The same was approved by the Directors of your
Company vide circular resolution dated March 26, 2025 and will be taken up for
ratification for the approval of the members of the Company at the ensuing Annual
General meeting of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel:
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During the financial year, Mr. Ravi Vukkadala (PAN: ABFPV7581F) resigned from the
post of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of your Company with effect from the close of
business hours of June 11, 2024. Your directors placed on record sincere appreciation of
Mr. Vukkadala’s leadership and contribution to the Company’s growth over 7 years.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 14, 2025, has appointed Mr. Bhavdeep
Bhatt (PAN: ACBPB2896C() as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of your Company effective
from June 12, 2024. Mr. Bhatt has 25 plus years of experience across Product, Business
Development, AlFs and has holistic distribution experience, having managed and grown
both retail and institutional channels. Such an appointment was in accordance with the
provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association of
your Company.

Further, Ms. Devanshi Shah (Membership No.. A65481) resigned from the post of
Company Secretary (CS) of your Company with effect from the close of business hours of
August 3, 2024.

CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL THAT HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1. Mr. Dhiraj Gupta (FCS No. 13432) was appointed as the Company Secretary of your
Company with effect from May 19, 2025. Such an appointment was in accordance with
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association
of your Company. Mr. Gupta has also been appointed as the Compliance Officer for the
Portfolio Management Services (PMS) division, in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 2020, as well as for the
Alternative Investment Funds (AIFs) managed by the Company under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, 6 (Six) Board meetings were held on May 13, 2024, July 15,
2024, August 12, 2024, September 23, 2024, October 26, 2024, and February 7, 2025.

The details pertaining to the attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board of
Directors held during the financial year 2024-25 are mentioned below:

Sr. |Name of the Director Nature of Directorship |Number of Board Meetings
No. Held  during |Attended
tenure
1 |Dr.Kshama Fernandes* |Whole-time Director / 6 6
Executive Chairperson
2 Mr. Ashish Mehrotra Non- Executive Director 6 6
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Mr. Chaitanya Pande Non- Executive Director 6 6
4 | Mr. Theodoor Brouwers* |Independent Director 4 4
5 | Mr. Pardhasaradhi Non- Executive Director 6 6
Rallabandi

i Mr. Nicholas Moon (DIN: 07725967) resigned from the post of the Non-Executive Director of the
Company effective from the close of business hours of April 30, 2024.
i *Retired as an Independent director of the Company with effect from October 20, 2024.
i1 #The designation of Dr. Fernandes has changed from Whole -time Executive Chairperson to
Non-Executive Director with effect from April 1, 2025.

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Your company is not mandated to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the
Companies Act read with Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.
However, in adherence to the principles of good corporate governance, your company
has voluntarily formed an Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times during the financial year 2024-25 on May 13, 2024,
August 12, 2024, September 23, 2024, October 26, 2024, and February 7, 2025.

The composition of the Committee along with the details of the meetings held and

attended by the members of the Committee during the financial year 2024-25 are as
below:

Number of Meetings
fll(;' Name of the Director Category Held during Attended
) tenure
1 Dr. Kshama Fernandes Chairperson 5 5
2 Mr. Theodoor Brouwers* Member 3 3
3 Mr. Chaitanya Pande Member 5 5
4 Mr. Ashish Mehrotra Member 5 5
5 Mr. Pardhasaradhi Rallabandi Member 5 5
Note: *Retired as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from October 20, 2024.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, your Company has constituted a CSR
Committee.

The CSR Committee met once during the financial year 2024-25 on August 12, 2024.

The composition of the Committee along with the details of the meeting and attended by

10
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the members of the Committee during the financial year 2024-25 is as under:
Sr. | Name of the Director | Category Number of Meetings
No. Held during tenure| Attended
1 Dr. Kshama Fernandes | Chairperson 1 1
2 Mr. Theodoor Brouwers| Member 1 1
3 Mr. Chaitanya Pande Member 1 1

Note: *Retired as a member of the CSR Committee with effect from October 20, 2024.

Northern Arc Capital Limited, along with its subsidiaries (the Northern Arc Group),
fulfills its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) commitments through the Northern Arc
Foundation, a Section 8 not-for-profit company established for this purpose. Northern
Arc’s CSR activities focuses on three thematic areas - Education, Heath & Destitute Care,
and Environment & Sustainability - to support and enable traditionally marginalized and
vulnerable communities. The Foundation also focuses on other charitable and socially
beneficial purposes

The Northern Arc Group has also formulated a CSR policy in line with the provisions of
Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has also
adopted this policy, reflecting our collective commitment to fulfilling corporate social
responsibility obligations. The policy is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/statutory-compliances.

For the FY 2024-25, an amount of X 23,16,527 /- was earmarked for the CSR budget,
being 2% of the average of the net profits for the preceding three financial years.

In accordance with the CSR Policy and as a part of CSR initiative, the Board of Directors of the
Company, basis the recommendation received from CSR Committee have approved a
multiyear wetland restoration project, which was aimed at rejuvenating Nanneer Kulam
(waterbody) at Kayar Village, Thiruporur Block, Chengalpattu District, Tamil Nadu,
addressing critical environmental and community needs. A total amount of X 23,98,200/-
was allocated through Northern Arc Foundation, to Thuvakkam Welfare Association
(implementing agency) for the same. On account of a delay in receiving the approval
letter from the Chengalpattu District Collectorate for the said project, out of the total
amount of X23,98,200/-, a sum of X5,08,100/- was spent during the financial year 2024-
25, and an interest of X22,809/- was accrued as surplus. Accordingly, in line with the
provisions of Section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the unspent amount of
X18,90,100/- along with the accrued interest of X22,809/- will be utilized in the next
financial year, 2025-26.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities is enclosed as per prescribed format as ‘Annexure 1’
and forms part of this report.

REMUNERATION

In accordance with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, below are the remuneration
details of the Directors of your Company:

11
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Particulars of
remuneration

Dr. Kshama
Fernandes®

Chaitanya
Pande

Ashish
Mehrotra

Pardhasaradhi

Rallabandi

Theodoor
Brouwers*

Nicolas
Moon#*

Gross salary

(a) Salary under
section 17(1) of the
Income tax Act,
1961 (IT Act)

(b) Perquisites u/s
17(2) of IT Act

(c) Profits in lieu of|
salary under section
17(3) of IT Act

2,00,00,000

Benefits

Bonus

Details of fixed
component and
performance linked

incentives

Sweat Equity /
Stock Options

Others,
specify -
i) Sitting fees

please

46,50,000

5,86,688

ii) Commission

4,00,000

4,31,109

Service contracts,
notice periods,

severance fees

Note: *Retired as an Independent Director with effect from October 20, 2024.

#Resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from close of business hours of April 30, 2024.
@The designation of Dr. Fernandes has changed from Whole -time Executive Chairperson to Non-
Executive Director with effect from April 1, 2025.

VOTING RIGHTS NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY EMPLOYEES:

- Not applicable

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS REPORT:

The Board of Directors of the Company vide circular resolution passed on December 20,
2024 and the Shareholders of your Company at the Extra-ordinary meeting (EGM) held
on December 21, 2024 had appointed M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co., LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (ICAI FRN No: 001076N/N500013) as the Statutory Auditors of your
Company for FY 2024-25 due to the casual vacancy caused on account of resignation of
M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No:
101049W/E300004), who shall hold office up to the conclusion of ensuing AGM of the

Company.

As the term of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co., LLP will expire at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on July 23, 2025 have

12
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recommended to the shareholder for the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co., LLP,
Chartered Accountants, (ICAI FRN No: 001076N/N500013) as the Statutory Auditors of
your Company, for a term of 5 (five) financial years, to hold office until the conclusion of
the AGM to be held for the financial year ending on March 31, 2031, subject to their
continuity of fulfilment of the applicable eligibility norms, on such remuneration as may
be decided by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Audit Committee.
M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co., LLP had confirmed at the time of the appointment that they
were not disqualified to be appointed as statutory auditor in terms of the provisions of
the Act read with rules made thereunder.

COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR
ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITOR IN THE REPORT:

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse comments or disclaimer made by
the Statutory Auditors, M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, in their
audit report.

The Statutory Auditors of your Company have not reported any fraud as specified under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The details of related party transactions as required to be disclosed under Accounting
Standards forms part of the notes to the financial statements provided in this annual
report. During the year under review, there are no contracts or arrangements entered
into with related parties as referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
which require disclosure in Form AOC-2, hence disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not
applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Your Company had not given any loans or guarantee or provided any security to its
directors or any other person in whom the director is interested. Neither had it granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, given guarantee or provided any security to any other body
corporate. Your Company had not acquired by way of subscription, purchase or
otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate except investment as a sponsor
contributor in the alternative investment funds managed by it.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Your Company keeps the Board informed periodically of the significant risks associated with
the business of the Company and the various risk identification and mitigation processes
put in place by the management. In the opinion of the Board, your Company has
developed and implemented risk management procedures that are sufficient to combat
risks that may threaten the existence of your Company. The enterprise risk management
framework has also been adopted by your Board and is also subject to review from time to
time.

13
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The framework lays down the principles for risk management, identifies specific risks that
your Company faces, categorises such risks in order of severity and impact, and prescribes
the guidelines for managing, reporting and tracking such risks.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

In the last financial year, the completeness and adequacy of internal financial controls of
your Company was evaluated by the internal auditor of the Company and report of the
same has been shared with the Statutory Auditors of your Company. During FY 2024-25,
the internal financial controls were tested and presented to the Audit Committee for its
review. The Audit Committee has reviewed the internal financial controls and stated that
the controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits as covered
under Chapter V

of the Companies Act, 2013 within the meaning of Sections 73 and 74 read together with
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

ANNUAL RETURN:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the annual return (in the
prescribed Form MGT-7) as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 is placed on
your Company’s website at https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/statutory-

compliances/.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of
Directors has appointed M/s. MM]B & Associates LLP, a firm of Company Secretaries in
practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2024-25. The Secretarial
Audit Report, in the prescribed Form No. MR-3, is annexed as Annexure 2.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Your Company has 21 employees on its payroll as of March 31, 2025. The detailed break-
up is as follows:

Male 17
Female 4
Transgender 0

Further, your Company does not offer stock options to any of its directors/employees.

14
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual and endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. During the year under
review, the details of the complaints pertaining to sexual harassment is as under:

Particulars No. of complaints
Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year | Nil
Number of complaints disposed off during the year Nil
Number of cases pending for more than ninety days Nil

Additionally, your Company has also complied with provisions relating to the constitution
of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961

Your Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Since, the operations of your Company are not energy intensive, there is nothing specific
for your Company to disclose with respect to the conservation of energy and technology
absorption in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, adequate measures have been initiated for
conservation of energy wherever possible.

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the period under review. The foreign
exchange outgoings were Rupees X 132.18 Lakhs/-.

Details of forex outgoing are as follows in X (lacs):

Professional Charges 115.01
Subscription 12.39
Director Sitting Fee 478
Total 132.18

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY'’S OPERATION IN FUTURE:

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and operations of your Company in future.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES:

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company affirms that
for the year ended on March 31, 2025:

(a) There was no revision in the financial statements of your Company.

(b) Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub- section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not
applicable to your Company.

(c) Your Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

(d) There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year.

(e) There was no one time settlement entered into with any Bank or financial institutions
in respect of any loan taken by your Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) accounting policies were selected and applied consistently, and reasonable prudent
judgments and estimates were made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of your Company at the end of March 31, 2025, and of the profit and loss of your
Company for that period;

(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts of your Company have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

(e) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCES:

Your Company has complied with all the applicable regulatory requirements of
compliances as required under the Companies Act, SEBI Circulars, various tax statutes as
well as the relevant statutory requirements as specified by the other concerned
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regulatory bodies.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS COMPLIANCES:

N®RTHERN
ARC

Your Company is in compliance with provisions of the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India in terms of the Companies Act,

2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors would like to thank the investors, clients, vendors, bankers, other service
providers and advisers of your Company for their continued association.

Your Directors would like to convey our gratitude to Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI), Reserve Bank of India, Central and State Governments and other statutory
authorities and look forward to their continued support.

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for employees at all levels, who
have contributed through their dedication and commitment to the growth and
performance of your Company. Your Directors also acknowledge the faith reposed in us
by Northern Arc Capital Limited as our holding/parent company and look forward to

your continued patronage.

For and on behalf of the Board

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

SD/-

Kshama Fernandes
Non-Executive Director
DIN:02539429

Date: 23/07/2025
Place: Mumbai

CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064
Registered Office:

IITM Research Park, Phase I, 10th
Floor, 1 Kanagam Village (Behind
Tidel Park), Taramani, Chennai,
Tamil Nadu - 600113

Tel.: +91 44 6668 7000/ +91 22 6668 7500

SD/-

Chaitanya Pande
Non-Executive Director
DIN: 06934810
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Annexure 1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2024-25

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Northern Arc Capital (the company’s holding company) along with its subsidiaries (Northern Arc
Group) is committed to making a direct contribution to society as a part of its Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) agenda.

Northern Arc Capital Limited, along with its subsidiaries (the Northern Arc Group), fulfills its
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) commitments through the Northern Arc Foundation, a
Section 8 not-for-profit company established for this purpose. Northern Arc’s CSR activities focuses
on three thematic areas - Education, Heath & Destitute Care, and Environment & Sustainability - to
support and enable traditionally marginalized and vulnerable communities. The Foundation also
focuses on other charitable and socially beneficial purposes.

The Company’s CSR policy is in line with the provisions of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013. The complete CSR policy of the Company can be accessed on the Company’s
website at https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted a CSR Committee with the following

members:
No. Of No.of meetings
meetings of
of CSR
S Nature of CSR .
) Designation | Directorship | Committee Committee
No. | Name of Director esigna P . attended
held during during the year
the year uring y
1 | Dr.Kshama Fernandes Chairperson | Non-Executive 1 1
Director
2 | Mr. Chaitanya Pande Member Non-Executive 1 1
Director
3 | Mr. Theodoor Brouwers* | Member Independent 1 1
Director

Note: *Retired as a member of the CSR Committee with effect from October 20, 2024.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company:

https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/statutory-compliances/

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of

rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policv) Rules, 2014, if

applicable (attach the report):

Not Applicable.


http://www.northernarcinvestments.com/
http://www.northernarcinvestments.com/statutory-compliances/

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 11,58,26,349/-

b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 23,16,527/-
c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil
d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): Rs. 23,16,527/-
6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project):
Rs. 23,98,200/-
(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs.5,08,100/-
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the | Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund
Financial to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VII as per
Year. (in Rs.) as per section 135(6) second proviso to
section 135(5)
Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of
transfer. the Fund transfer.
Rs. 5,08,100/- |Rs.1,890,100/-| 22/04/2025 -- NIL --
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: NIL
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs)
(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 23,16,527/-
135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 5,08,100/-
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities NIL
of the previous financial years, if any
(\%) Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years [(iii)- NIL
(iv)].




7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount | Amount Amount | Defici
No. | Financial | transferred Amountin | Spentin | transferred to a | remainin | ency,
Year to Unspent| Unspent the Fund as specified | g to be if any
CSR CSR Financia| under  Schedule | spent in
Account Account 1 Year | VII as per second | succeedin
under under (inRs) | proviso to sub-|g
section section section (5) of Financial
135 (6) 135(6) section 135, ifany | Years (in
(inRs.) (inRs.) Amount | Date of | Rs)
(in Rs) | transfer
1 2021-22 - - - - - - -
2 2022-23 - - - - - - -
3 2023-24 - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - -

8.In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NIL

Sr.
No.

Short particulars

complete address
and location of the

property]

Pin code

of the property orjof the
asset(s) [includingproperty

or
asset(s)

Date of
creation

Amount
of CSR
amount
spent

Details of entity/ Authority/
beneficiary of the registered owner

CSR Registration
Number, if
applicable

Name

Registered
address

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5): On account of a delay in receiving the approval letter from the Chengalpattu

District Collectorate for the said project, out of the total amount of ¥23,98,200/-, a sum of X5,08,100/-
was spent during the financial year 2024-25, and an interest of X22,809/- was accrued as surplus.

Accordingly, in line with the provisions of Section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the unspent
amount of ¥18,90,100/- along with the accrued interest of ¥22,809/- will be utilized in the next

financial year, 2025-26.

For and on behalf of the Board

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Kshama Fernandes Chaitanya Pande
Director Director

DIN: 02539429

Date: 23/07/2025
Place: Mumbai

DIN: 06934810

Date: 23/07/2025
Place: Mumbai




Annexure 2

MM]JB & Associates LLP

Company Secretaries

803-804, 8™ Floor, Ecstasy, Citi of Joy, JSD Road, Mulund - West, Mumbai — 400080, (T) +91 22 3100 8400
LLPIN: AAR-9997

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited,
IITM Research Park, Phase I, 10th Floor,

1 Kanagam Village (Behind Tidel Park), Tar,

Amani, Chennai- 600113, Tamil Nadu, India.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Northern Arc Investment Managers Private
Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and
maintenance of records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the
applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The
Auditing Standards requires that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended
on March 31, 2025 (hereinafter called the “Audit Period’) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the
provisions of:
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(iif) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’);

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to the Company

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
Company; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018. (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendment made thereunder; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards, etc. as mentioned above, except that the
Company has paid remuneration to its Director in excess of the limits specified in Section 197
of the Act for the Financial Year 2024-25 as the Company has inadequate profits in terms of
Section 198 of the Act. The Company has represented to us that it is in the process of
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complying with the prescribed statutory requirements to regularize such excess payments,
including seeking approval of shareholders, as necessary.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on the examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-
check basis, the Company has generally complied with the following law applicable
specifically to the Company:
i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 2020 and
circulars issued thereunder
if) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations,
2012 and circulars issued thereunder

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except in two cases where meeting
is convened at a shorter notice for which necessary approvals obtained as per applicable
provisions) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board,
as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period the Company has increased its borrowing

limits to X 260 Crores by passing a Special resolution at their Extraordinary General Meeting
held on September 23, 2024 under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

For MM]JB Associates & LLP
Company Secretaries

ICSI UIN: L2020MHO006700

Peer Review Cert. No.: 2826/2022

Sd/-

Deepti Kulkarni
Designated Partner
ACS: 34733

CP No.: 22502 Date: July 23, 2025
UDIN: A034733G000842751 Place: Mumbai

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 'A' and
forms an integral part of this report.

Page 3 of 4




Annexure ‘A’

To,

The Members,

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited,
IITM Research Park, Phase I, 10th Floor,

1 Kanagam Village (Behind Tidel Park), Tar,

Amani, Chennai- 600113, Tamil Nadu, India.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MM]JB Associates & LLP
Company Secretaries

ICSI UIN: L2020MHO006700

Peer Review Cert. No.: 2826/2022

Sd/-

Deepti Kulkarni
Designated Partner
ACS: 34733

CP No.: 22502 Date: July 23, 2025
UDIN: A034733G000842751 Place: Mumbai
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

16th Floor, Tower lll,

One International Center,
S B Marg, Prabhadevi (W),
Mumbai - 400013
Maharashtra, India

T +91 22 6626 2600

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025,
and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter: Presentation of financial statements

We draw attention to Note 37 (o) to the accompanying financial statements which describes that the
Company has prepared the financial statements in accordance with Division Il of the Schedule Il of the Act
considering the Company is a Nan-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) as defined in the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 for applicability of format for preparation of financial statements, instead
of Division Il of Schedule III of the Act. Accordingly, corresponding figures as at 1 April 2023 and as at and
for the year ended March 2024 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
T

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with
limited liability with identification number AAC-

Offices in Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Dehradun, Goa, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, 2085 and has its registered office at L-41,

Moida and Pune Connaught Circus, Quter Circle, New Delhi,
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Financials Statements

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

5. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors' Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

6. The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

8. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registerad with

limited liability with identification number AAC-
Offices in Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Dehradun, Goa, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbal, New Delhi, 2085 and has its registered office at L-41,
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11.

12.

13.

14.

18.

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financials Statements

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by the predecessor
auditor, S. R. Batliboi & Associate LLP, Chartered Accountants, who have expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements vide their audit report dated 13 May 2024,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure |, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financials Statements

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of

the

Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

separate report in Annexure Il, wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of

the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

Vi.

the Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as at
31 March 2025;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025,

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
37 (q) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
37 (h) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025.

As stated in Note 37 (k) to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, have used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Furthermore, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's R

egistration No.: 001076N/N500013

Murad D. Daruwalla

Partner
Member:

ship No.: 043334

UDIN: 25043334BMRJTV3474

Place; Mumbai
Date: 14 May 2025
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report
that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency
of physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (including investment properties) (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year. Further, the
Company does not hold any intangible assets.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (@) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's services / business activities. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure | (Contd)

(vii)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no statutory
dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way
of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not have
any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
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(xiii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details
of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute
an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an

internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under
the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period

(xv)

(xvi)

under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the

Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately

preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information and

(xix)

(xx)

explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to our
communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised
by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information in the financial statements, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing
project as at the end of the financial year. )C\.z:con:ilnglyr reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. N
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(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause
under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

UL

Murad D. Daruwalla
Partner
Membership No.: 043334

UDIN: 25043334BNMRJTV3474

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14 May 2025
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure |l referred to in paragraph 15 (f) to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

-

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
(‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential compaonents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

A

Murad D. Daruwalla
Partner
Membership No.: 043334

UDIN: 25043334BMRJTV3474

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14 May 2025
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Balance Sheet

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Asat As at As at
Particulars Note
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 ;\Eril 1, 2023
Assels
I Financials assets
a Cash and cash equivalents 4 6242 0.02 30.80
b. Receivables 5
(i) Trade receivables 082 64 892 44 840.28
{ii) Other receviables 131.02 18533 58459
¢ Investments [ 11,326 37 14,374.13 333551
d. Other financial assets 7 7121 8.02 726
Total financial assels 12,209.66 15,459.94 4,798.44
1l Non-financial assets
a. Current tax assets (net) 8 22355 64391 463.830
b. Deferred tax assets (net) 26 394.82 - -
¢ Property, plant and equipment ;] - - 0.12
d. Other non-financial assets 1o 508 88 61557 TI1.64
Total non-financial assets 1,127.25 1,259.48 1,175.56
Total assels 13,336.91 16,719.42 5,974.00
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
1 Financial liabilities
Payables
a Trade payables 1
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 218.20 349.10 817
b. Borrowings (other than debt securities) 12 7,560.84 10,098 31 169.43
c. Other financial liabilities 3 449,08 515.07 T73.85
Total financial liabilities 8,228.12 10,962.48 1,001.45
1T Non-financial liabilities
a Provisions 4 58.67 168.07 16438
b. Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26 - T1.89 2002
¢. Other non-financial liabilities 5 173.55 130.67 129.52
Total non-financial liabilities 232,22 370.63 313.92
11 Equity
a. Equity share capital 16 36100 361.00 361.00
b, Other equity 17 4,515.57 5,025.31 4,207 63
Total equity 4,876.57 5,386.31 4,658.63
Total liabilities and equity 13,336.91 16,719.42 5,974.00

< 1

y of ial ad ing policies and other explanatory information (1 1o 37)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Acconmtants
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 001076N/NS00013

Murad D. Daruwalla
Pariner
ICAI Membership No. 043334

Place | Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

CIN: U74120TN2014PTCO95064
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Ashish Dfelhmtnl
Director
DIN:07277318
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025
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Bhavdeep Chandrakant Bhatt
Chief Executive Officer

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 14, 2025

Kshama Fernandes
Director
DIN:02539429
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 14, 2025

\

Vishal Garg

Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 14, 2025



Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

(All amaunts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

> Note Year ended Year ended
Raptminie March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue
Revenue [rom operations 18
Interest income 1,539.07 71235
Fee and commission income 3,078.04 2,989 88
Net gain on fair value changes - 121.54
Total revenue from operations 4,617.11 3,823.77
Other income 19 623 58 758.56
Total income 5,240.69 4.582.33
Expenses
Fin:;:e costs 20 1,126.47 363.07
Fee and commission expense 21 641 54 91840
Net loss on fair value changes 2z 1,759 54 .
Employee henefit expenses 23 1,134.52 1,033 13
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 ) g
Other expenses 25 1,250.86 1,25020
Total expenses 5,921.93 3,564.92
Profit / (Loss) before tax (681.24) 1,017.41
Tax expense
Current tax 26 29943 22530
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods = 2549
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 26 (467.77) 4862
(168.34) 29941
Profit / (Loss) lor the year (511.90_2_ 718.00
- Other comprehensive income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of gain / (loss) for defined benefit plan 422 12.94
 Deferred tax charge / (credit) on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan {1.06) (3.26)
- Other comprehensive income for the year 3.16 9.68
‘comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (509.74) 727.68
per equity share (Nominal Value - INR 100/ Share) 35
rupees) (142.08) 198 89
(in rupees) (142.08) 198 89
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Sm:mnm of Profit and Loss referred 10 in our report of even date

Date - May 14, 2025

tra
Director /
DIN.07277418
Place : Mumbai
Date - May 14, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064
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Bhavdeep Chandrakan( Bhatt Vishal Garg
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai Place - Mumbai




Northern Ave Investment Managers Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars At as March 31, 2025 Al as March 31, 2024 At as Aprl 1, 2023
No. of shares Amouni No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity share of Rs. 100 each issued, subseribed and fully paid up
Opening balance 3,610,000 6l 00 3,61,000 361.00 3.61.,000 361.00
Add: Issued during the year - - - - -
Closing balance 3,61,000 361.00 3,601,000 36100 3.61,000 361,00
Total 3.61,000 361.00 361,000 361.00 3,61,000 361,00
B. Other equity
Reserves and snrelns Other
Capital R Comprehensi
Redemption Eamings Income (OCI) Total
Reserve
Opening balance as at April 1, 2024 722.00 4,262.64 40.67 502531
Transactions during the year ended March 31, 2025
Profit for the year - (512.90) - (512.90)
Reclassification of remeasurement of net defined benefit linbility - - ile 316
Balance as at March 31, 2025 722,00 3,749.74 43.83 4,515.57
Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 722.00 3,544.64 3099 4,297.63
Transactions during the year ended March 31, 2024
Profit for |:I:= year - T18.00 - 71800
Reclassification of of net defined benefit liability - - G.68 968
Balance as at March 31, 2024 722.00 4,262,64 40.67 5,025.31

y of material

This 15 the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's tration No. 001076N/N3S00013

Murad D. Daruwalla
Partner
ICAI Membership No. 043334
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Date : May |4, 2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
CIN: UT4120TNZ014PTCO95064
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Director Director
DIN:Gf277318 DIN:02539429
Place - Mumbai Place - Mumbai
Date © May 14, 2025 Date : May 14, 2025
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Pastlculine Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax (681.24) 1,017.41
Adjustments for:
Interest on income tax refund (50.38) (4.16)
Interest income (1,539.07) (712.35)
Unrealised gain on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,759.54 (121.54)
Depreciation and amortisation expense - 0.12
Interest expense on term loan 1,126.47 363.07
Operating profit before working capital changes 615.32 542,55
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables 264,11 (52.16)
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets 0.81 398.62
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-financial assets 106.69 95.95
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (130.90) =
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (65.99) (257.63)
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (105.18) 307.12
Increase / (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 42,88 51.87
Cash generated from operations 727.74 1,086.32
Taxes paid, net of refunds 171.31 (478.17)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 899.05 608.15
B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (3.731.00) (10,580.04)
Sale or redemption of investments 5,227.65 -
Interest received from investments 1,330.63 375.30
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B) 2,827.28 (10,204.74)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 11,382.61 14,261.28
Repayment of borrowings (13,920.07) (4,332.41)
Interest paid (1,126.47) (363.06)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) (3,663.93) 9,565.80
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 62.40 (30.78)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.02 30.80
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 62.42 0.02
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Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to cash flow statement

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of Balances with banks:

Balances with banks
In current accounts
Cash and cash equivalents

2 Fipures in brackets indicate cash outflows.

62.42 0.02

62.42 0.02

3 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7, “Statement of Cash Flows’, as specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (1 to 37)

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report on even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Murad D. Daruwalla
Partner
ICAI Membership No. 043334
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Date : May 14, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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CIN: U74120TN2014PTCH5064

Ashish Melirotra
Direc[;?/
DIN:07277318

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025
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Bhavdeep Chandrakant Bhatt
Chief Executive Officer

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 14, 2025

Kshama Fernandes
Director
DIN:02539429
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025

Vishal Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025
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Background

Nortl Arc | M Private Limited was incorporated on February 17, 2014, with the aim of carryimg on the business of Investment

Company and also 10 prowde portfolio management services to Offshore funds and all kinds of Investment Funds The Company acts as an investment
10 its alt funds. The Company 15 a wholly ewned subsidiary of Northern Arc Capital Limited. The Company's registered

address 15 No 1, Kanagam Village, 10th Floor IITM Research Park, Taramani Chennai TN 600113 The CIN of the Company is
UT4120TN2ZO14PTCO95064

Statement of compliance

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company comply in all matenal aspects and have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind

AS") notified ynder Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provisions of the Act, as amended from time to time

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 14, 2025

Accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods p | in these fi il

The Company i1s covered by the defi of Non-Banking Fi | Company as defined m Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment)
Rules, 2016. As per the format prescribed under Division 1 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 on 11 October 2018, the Company presents the
Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity in the order of liquidity. A maturily analysis of recovery or
settlement of assets and linbilities within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in Note 25,

Details of the Company's material accounting policies were diselosed i note 3

Funetional and presentation currency

These [i 1al are p 1 in [ndian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional y. All have been led-oft to

the nearest Rupees in lakhs (two decimals), unless otherwise indicated

Basis of measurement

The fi ial have been prepared on the histonical cost basis except for the following items:

- Certain fi ial i are d at fair values,

- Investments - measured at fair value through Profit and loss (FVTPL)

- Defined benefit plan - plan assets measured at fair value

- Liabilities for equity setiled share based p - d at fair value on grant date

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The pre of financial § in conformity with [lid AS requi to make d and I that affect the

application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assels and habilities (Including contingent habilities) and disclosures as of the date of

financial statements and the reported of and exp for the reporting permd

Actual results could differ from these estimates. A:munlmg and underl P are reviewed on an ing basis and could change

I'tom period to period. Appropriate changes in are ized |n the pennd n whlch the Company becomes aware of the changes in
sur ding the Any revisions 1o ac ing are 2 prospectively in the period in which the estimate is

revised and future peniods

A It and estimation uncertainiti

Information about critical jud P and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment 15

included in the following notes:

Note 30 — recognition and measurement of provisions and conti ies, key ions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources, if any;

Note 31 — measurement of defined benefit
Note 26 — recognition of deferred tax assets;

Note 27 — Financial instruments — measurement of fair values and impairment of financial assets;
Note 32 — Estimation Of fair value in respect of employee stock option plan

: key

Material accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

Fee income

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Fi ial l are applicable) is d at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Ind AS 115 R from with lines a single comprehensive model of ing for arising from contracts
with and sup des current recogniti id found within Ind ASs.

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer. A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the cniteria for every contract that must be met

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obli isay ise ina with a to transfer a good or
service to the customer.

Step 3: D ine the ion price: The tr ion price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for translerring promised goods or services toa . exclud llected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the ion price to the perfq blig: in the For a that has more than one performance obligation, the
Company all the ton price to each perl'on‘nnn,ce obl]gal]on i an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company

expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each perfc

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation
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Management fees

Pursuant to the management agreement ( private placement memorandum (PPM) entered by the Company with the funds, the Company charges
management fees 1o the funds as a percentage of the aggregate capital comtributions by the investors. Revenue from fees 15 i 1 as
and when services are performed over ime

Net gain / {loss) on fair value changes
The realized gains / losses from financial mstruments at FYTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of financial mstrument at the
beginning of the reporting period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its settlement price.

Fund operating fee
Pursuant 1o the management agreement / prnivate placement memorandum (PPM) entered by the Company wath the fund, Company mcurs all operating
expense on behall of the fund and recharges to the fund at specified percentage as Fund operating fee

Other income
Other income such as interest on income tax refund, recovery from written ofT assets are recognised on receipt basis

Income from i in all ive i fund
Income from mvestment in alternative investment fund 15 recogmised when the right to receive is established.

Dividend income

Dividend income 15 recogmised when the Company's night to receive the payment is
the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This 1s
dividend

hilicl

i, 1t is probable that the economic benefits associated with

11 forotodd

when the 5 app the

Financial instrument - initial recognition

A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or equity instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial asscts

Initial recognition

Financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction cost that are directly
ble to the acquisition of the fi ial asset. Purch or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a tme frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Company commils 1o purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For of sub fi ial assels are

Taceifiad i Foll

in ing categories

- financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these
assets in order 1o collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these fi | assels 15 T 1 in 8 of Profit
and Loss using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method.

Impairment gains or losses ansing on these assets are recognised n the Statement of Profit and Loss

- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ("OCI")

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCT of these financial assets are held within a business model in order to collect contractual cash
flows and 10 sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset wive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- financial assels measured at FVTPL
Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL.

Impairment of Financial assels

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for and iion of impai loss on
financial assets and credit risk exposures. The Company follows “simplified app h' for gnition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables, other receivables and other financial assets, Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it

loss based on lifetime ECL at each reportingdate, right from its imitial recogmition

De-recognition of linancial assets

The Company de-recogmises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash Nlows from the asset expires (such as redemption of mutual
fund umits), or it transfers the fi 1l asset and sut wally all risks and is of hip of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company rerains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asse, the Company conti 1o recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

(b) Equity instrumenis and financial liabilities
Equity instruments issued by and financial liabilities of the Company are classified ding to the sub of the I ar entered
into and the defini of an equity i andafi 1 liability as lard down in Ind AS.

Equity instruments

An equity i is any that a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded al the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, Equity instruments which are issued for
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition
Financial habihties are elassified, at iniual recognition, as fi ial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs
Subsequent measurement
The of 1al habiliies depends on their classification, as described below
- Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as held for rading if they are mcurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
- Financial linbilities at amortised cost
Afler imitial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowmys are subsequentl i at d cost using the EIR method Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the sentlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings i the
Swuatement of Profit and Loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilitics are de-recognised when the ebligation specified in the contract 15 discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the enginal ligbility and recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment of non financial assets
Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there 15 any indication that an asset (tangible or 1 ble) may be impaired. If any such
indication exisis, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written
down 1o their ble amount. R ble amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an assel and from its disposal at the end of 1s useful life. Assessment is also
done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there i5 any indication that an impairment loss recogised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no
longer exist or may have decreased
Write-offs
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset 15 written off (either partially or in full) 1o the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could sull be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the | ption that the to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place
either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,
The principal or the most ad 1 market is accessible by the Comy
The fair value of an asset or a liability is 1 using the tons that market partici would use when pricing the asset or lisbility, assuming
that market participants act in their best cconomic Interest
Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values are analyzed at the end of each reporting period.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value 15 measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categonized within the fair value hierarchy,
deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
-Level | quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices),
-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety m the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the entire
measurement.
The Company recognizes iransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the repotting period during which the change has occurred (if
any).

3.3 Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after

deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and esti d costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major p of property, plant and equiy

Any gmin or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equip is gnised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that additional
future economic benefits from the existing assets will Mow Lo the Company and the cost of the item can be measured rehably
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iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the written down value method, and is g lly rec 1n the of profit and loss

The Company follows estimated useful lives which are given under Part C of the Schedule I1 of the Companies Act, 2013 The estimated useful lives of
items of property. plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Assel category Useful Lile
Computers and accessonies 3 years
Oifice equipments 5 years
D

iv. Derecognition
The carrying amount of an tem of property, plant and equip 15 di pnised on disposal or when no future benefits are d from s
use. On dispesals gains and losses are d d by ¢ 1 is with carrying amount and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ddini fai d

on Is) is pi d on a pro-rata basis i.¢ from (up to) the date on which asset 15 ready for use (disposed of)

i

Employee benefits
i. Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company's ik 1o p lent fund are idered as defined bution plan and are charged as an expense as they fall due based on the
amount of contribution required to be made and when the services are rendered by the employees

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is caleulated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of fulure benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the caleulaton
results i a potential assel for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contnibutions to the plan (*the asset ceiling’). In arder to caleulate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any mini funding requi

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit hability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the assel ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised in OCL The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit hability (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period 1o the then-net defined benefit liability
(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of thutions and benefit pay . Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curlallcd Ihe resulting change in benefit that relates to past service ("past service cost’ or
‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on 1 15 diately in profit or loss. The Company recogmses gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs

ii. Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The tmpluyecs can can)r forward a portion of the ihised accrued p i at and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash

on of empl Since the comy d absences do not fall due whally within twelve manths afier the end of such period,
Ihc hmﬁl 15 classified as a long- lcrlu employee benefit. The Company records an obli for such 1 at in the period in which the
employee renders the services that i this 1 The obligation is d on the basis of independent actuarial val using the

projected unit credit method.

iii. Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services lered by employees are ized
during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to
occur within twelve months after the end of the year in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of such compensated absences is
accounted as under :

(a) in case of p when emp render the services that increase their entitlement of fulure compensated absences,
and

iv. Employee Stock Option based compensation

The Employee Stock Option Scheme provides for the grant of options to acquire equity shares of the holding company to its employees. The period of

vesling and period ufcxercise are as specified within the schemes. The fair value at grant date of equity settled share-based payment options granted to
ployees is recognized as an employee benefit ex; with a cor in equity, over the peniod that the employees unconditionally

become entitled to the options. The amount recognized as expense is based on the estimate of the number of options for which the related service

conditions are expected 1o be met, such that the amount ulty 1 gnized as an is based on the number of options that do meel the related

service conditions at the vesting date. Such F ion cost is ized over the vesting period of the respective tranches of such grant,

Provisions and contigent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, 1t is probable that an outflow of resources embodymb economic

bencl’ls will be requnred to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provi are 1 at the best
of exp quired 1o settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present value,
Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past evenls where 1t 1s either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

H.' \hﬂfo\\
LN
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Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It 15 recogmised 1n profit or loss except 1o the extent that it relates o a business combination or to an item
recogmised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i, Currvent tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recevable on the taxable mcome or loss for the year and any adjustment 1o the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of curremt tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after

considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.
Current tax asseis and current tax habilities are offset only if there 15 a legally enforceable night to set off the pnised and it s led 10

realise the asset and settle the hability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used The
existence of unused tax losses s strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available Therefore, in case of a istory of recent losses, the
Company recogmises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient 1axable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable prafit will be available agamst which such deferred tax asset can be realised Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recogmised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable resp ly that the related 1ax benefit
will be realised

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply w0 the penod when the asset is realised or the liability 15 settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the 1ax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assels and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset if there 15 a legally enforceable right to offset current tax habilities and assets, and they relate to income laxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend 1o settle current tax habilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs i iin 1om with | ing and differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment 1o the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such tme as the assels are substantially ready for their intended use or sale, All other borrowing costs are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an onginal maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily ible into known of cash and which are subject o insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents comprises
balances in current account with banks,

Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share i accordance with Ind AS 33, Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing net profit / loss after 1ax aunbutable 1o the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year, Diluted eamings per equity share is puted and disclosed by dividing the net profit/ loss after 1ax aunbutable to the
equity share holders for the year after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive

Cash Now statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after 1ax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non—cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue g fi ing and i ting activities of the
Company are segregated Cash flows in foreign currencies are accounted at the actual rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

New and Amended Standards
Ministry of Corporate AfTairs ("MCA™) notifies new Jards or ' to the existing dards under Companies (Indian A ing
Rules as issued from time to time. MCA has notified below new standards / amendments which were effective from 1 Apnil, 2024

Amendment to Tnd AS 116 — Lease Liability in a sale and leasehack

The d ires an enlity to gnise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not linked to index or a rate in a way it does

not result into gain on Right of use assel it retains.
Introduction of Ind AS 117

MCA notified Ind AS 117, a comprehensive standard that prescribe, it and discl to avoid d ities in
practice for accounting insurance contracts and it applies to aII panies i.e., toall i € ¢ " regard| uflht issuer. However, Ind AS 117
is not applicable to the entities which are | 2 d with IRDAL

The Company has revi i the new p and based on its evaluation has d that these d do not have an impact on the

financial statements.
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4 Cash and cash equivalents

Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 62.42 0.02 30.80
Total 62.42 0.02 30.80
5 Receivables
Asat Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023

Trade receivables
(1) Receivables considered good - secured = = <

{1i) Receivabl idered good - d 682.64 892,44 840.28
(iii} Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - unsecured - - -
(iv) Receivables - credit impaired - i = = =

Less: Allowance for impairment loss - - 3

Other receivables *

Unsecured, considered good 131.02 18533 584.59
Total 81.‘_.66 1 ﬁ}??.?‘." 1,424.87

* No debts are due from directors or other officers or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person. No debts are due from firms, limited liability
partnerships or private companies in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2025

Currtat bt (8] g for following periods from due date of payment
¢ Less than 6 6 months— -2 Total
Particulars not due 2-3 years More than 3 years
Months | vear years
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered - 682.64 - - - - 682.64

good

Undisputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - & @
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivables — credit - - - - - - -
impaired

Disputed Trade receivables — considered - - - - = = =
good

Disputed Trade receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - 5 *

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - - - - = - <
Total - 682.64 - - - - 682.64
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Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31,2024

Cureant bt OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment )
v Less than 6 6 months = 1-2 Total
Particulars not due 2-3 years Maore than 3 years
Months 1 vear YEars
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered : 892.44 = = - - s
good
Undisputed Trade receivables — which have - - - = = = =
significant increase in eredit risk
Undisputed Trade receivables — credit - - - - - - =
impaired
Disputed Trade receivables — considered - - - - = ¥ =
pood
Disputed Trade receivables — which have - - - - - E 5
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - o -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - - = = - = x
Tatal - 592,44 = = - - 892.44
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at April 1,2023
Current but Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
X Lessthan 6  fimonths—  1-2 Total
Particulars not due 2-3 years Muore than 3 years
Months I year years
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered - 840.28 - - - - 840,28
good
Undisputed Trade receivables — which have - - - - - - a
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivables — credit - - - - - = .
impaired
Disputed Trade receivables — considered - - - - - - %
good
Disputed Trade receivables — which have - - - - - 2 3
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - .
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - - = = - = <
Total - 840.28 - - : E 840,28
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 Investments

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Measured at fair value through profit and loss
(i) Alternative Investment Funds - unquoted

IFMR Fimpact Long Term Credit Fund 2,695.30 2731.78 544.85
2,498.24 (March 31, 2024: 2,498.24) units of INR 100,000 each

Northern Are Money Market Alpha Fund 1.071.01 1,360.34 1,264.04
10,07,206.7648 (March 31, 2024: 13,01,982.63) units of INR 100 each

Northem Arc India Impact Fund 5,858.20 T.524.81 550.04
6,476.56 (March 31, 2024: 6,476.56) units of INR 100,000 each

Northemn Arc Income Builder Fund (Series 11)-Class A - 223292 725,60
Nil (March 31, 2024: 1 476.48) units of INR 100,000 each

Northern Arc Emerging Corporate Bond Fund 52318 52428 250,98

488.37 (March 31, 2024: 488.37) units of INR 100,000 each

Northern Arc Finserv Fund 515.77 - -
500 (March 31, 2024: Nil) units of INR 100,000 each

Northern Arc Fintech NBFC Fund | 51513 - -
487.7940 (March 31, 2024: Nil) units of INR 100,000 each
Total Investments in AIFs 11,178.59 14,374.13 3,335.51

{ii) Investment in Mutual Funds - quoted

Axis Overnight Fund - Direct Growth 60.04 2 »
4443.995 (March 31, 2024: Nil) units

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Direct Growth ** 87.74 = A
20,952.915 (March 31, 2024: Nil}) units

Total Investments in Mutual Funds 147.78 -

Total Investments 11,326.37 14,374.13 3,335.51

Geographical market
- in India 11,326.37 14,374.13 333551

- outside India

11,326.37 14,374.13 3,335.51

Aggregate amount of quoted invesiments 147.78 - -
«  Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 11,178.59 14,374.13 333551
** Jien marked
7 __Other financial assets
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Security deposits, considered good - unsecured 4.98 4.98 4.80
Advance 1o employees 223 3.04 246
Total 7.21 8.02 7.26
8 Current tax assets (net)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Advance Income tax (net of provision for tax Rs. 2,107.64 lakhs; Mar 31, 2024 Rs.
1,896.06 lakhs; Apr 1, 2023 Rs. 1,645.26 lakhs) 223.55 643.91 463.80
Total 223.55 643,91 463.80
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Computer and Office -
’ . 2 T'otal
accessories quiy

Cost / Deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2022 19.97 0.80 2077
Additions 2 i z
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 19.97 0.80 20,77
Balance as at March 31, 2023 19.97 0.80 20,77
Additions - - -
Disposals (4.17) (0.80) (4.97)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 15.80 - 15.80
Balance as at March 31, 2024 15.80 - 15.80
Additions - - -
Disposals = = =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 15.80 - 15.80
Depreciation
Balance as at March 31,2022 14.61 0.80 1541
Depreciation for the year 5.24 - 5.4
Accumulated depreciation on disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 19.85 0.80 20.65
Balance as alt March 31, 2023 19.85 0.80 20.65
Depreciation for the year 0.12 - 0.12
Accumulated depreciation on disposals 4.17) (0.80) (4.97)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 15.80 - 15.80
Balance as at March 31, 2024 15.80 - 15.80
Depreciation for the year - - -
Accumulated depreciation on disposals ) - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 15.80 - 15.80
Net block
AsatApril 1,2023 0.12 - 0,12
Asat March 31, 2024 4 = =
As at March 31, 2025 - - -
Note:
On ¢onversion to Ind AS, the group elected to continue with all its property, plant and equipment recognised as at Apr 01, 2017 measured as per the
previous IGAAP and use the carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. The Company has followed the same accouting policy

choice as initially adopted on transition date Apr 01, 2017 while preparing these financial statement.
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10 Other non financial assets, unsecured considered good

As at Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Prepaid expenses 408 90 52679 57548
Advance to supplier 023 001 013
Balances with government authorities 99 75 88,77 136,03
Total 508.88 615.57 T11.64
11 Trade payables®
Asat Asat Asat

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

Trade payables (undisputed)

-Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
-Total owstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21820 349.10 5817
Total 218,20 349.10 58.17
*There are no disputed trade payables to MSME or others

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2025
Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Current  Less than 1
but not due year
(1) MSME - - E - - -
(1) Others 218.20 - - - - 218.20
(in} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -

(v} Disputed dues — Others - S = i 5 =
Total 218.20 - - - = 218.20

Particulars 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

i C t Lessthan |
Particulars HLTEN SRt 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
but not due year
(i) MSME =

(11) Others 900 - - - - 349.10
() Disputed dues -~ MSME - - - - - -

(v} Disputed dues — Others - - - . - -
Total 349.10 - - - = 349.10

As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Coreent  Lessthinl 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
but not due year

(1) MSME 5 = - N - _

(it} Others 5817 - - - - 58.17

(i1} Disputed dues - MSME -

iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - - -

Total 58,17 - - - - 58.17

Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024:NIL), there were no delays in payment to micro and small enterprises as required to be disclosed

Under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (*MSMED’), the determination has been made to the extent such parties were
identified by the Management based on the information available and are relied upon by the statutory auditors.
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as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

12 Borrowings (other than debt securities)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

Measured at amortised cost:

Term Loans
- from non-banking finance company (secured) 7,560.84 - H
- from holding company ( ed) - 9.842.70 -
- Structured cash credit from holding company (unsecured) - 255.61 169.43
Tatal 7,560.84 10,098.31 169.43
12,1 Geographical market
- in India 7.560.84 10,098.31 169.43
- outside India = * o
Total 7,560.84 10,098.31 169.43
12,2 Details regarding terms of borrowings
Loan Name Sanction limit Terms of Redemption Interest rate Maturity date
Term loan from non-banking finance company 10,000.00 4 years 12.25% {Moating) 30-Sep-28
Structured cash credit from holding company 10,000.00 NA 12.5% (fixed) 31-Oct-28

12.3  Term loan from non-banking finance company is secured by hypothecation of current assets, non-current assets and movable fixed assets.

12.4  Interest is payable on monthly basis for both term loan and structured cash credit

12.5 During the year the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues

13 Other financial liabilities

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Employee benefits payable 24585 251,72 28141
Payable to related parties (also refer note 34) 203.23 263,35 492 44
Total 449.08 515.07 773.85
14  Provisions
As at As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

Provision for employee benefits:

- Gratuity (refer note 31) 27.97 118.13 111,50
- Compensated absences (refer note 31) 30.70 49.94 52.88
Tatal 58.67 168.07 164.38

15 Other non-financial liabilities

As at As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Statutory dues payable 173.55 130.67 129.52
Total 173.55 130.67 129.52

This space is intentionally left blank
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(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

v of material ing palicies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

16 Share capital
As al Asal Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Authoriseil
1,500,000 (March 31, 2024: 500,000) equity shares of Rs 100/~ each with voung 1,500.00 500,00 S00.00
nghts
1,500,000 (March 31, 2024: 1.500.000) Redeemable preference Shares of Rs 100 each 1.500.00 1.500.00 1,500.00
3@00.00 2,000.00 Z.%
Issued, subscribed and paid up
361,000 (March 31, 2024° 361,000) Equity shares of Rs 100/- each with voting rights 36].00 36100 361.00
361.00 36100 361.00
a)  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at Apr 1, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount Nao. of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 3.61,000 361.00 3.61,000 361.00 3,61,000 361.00
Add: Shares issued during the year = & = % =
Less: Shares cancelled dunng the year
At the end of the year 361,000 361.00 3,61,000 361.00 3,61,000 361,00
|
b)  Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares
i) Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The dividend, if any,
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, in prnpomnn 10 Ihe|r
sh;rl:hofdln;, As per the records of the Company. mcluding its register of shareholders’ members and other declaration received from the sharehold 30 g
interest, the shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares
¢} Shares held by holding/ ulti holding comy and /or their subsidiaries /
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at Apr 1, 2023
No. of shares % held No. of shares %o held No. of shares o held
Equity shares:
Morthem Arc Capital Limited mcluding 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100%
its nominee share holders
d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at Apr 1, 2023
No. of shares o held No. of shares %o held No. of shares %o held
Equity shares:
Northern Are Capital Limited including 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100%
its nominee share holders
e} Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2025
No. of shares at the : :
Promoter Name beginning  of the Changedubingthe  No:clahavesat the % of Total Shares N oF Shiares st i %o of Total Shares
yéae year end of the year end of the year
Naorthermn Are Capital Limited 3,61,000 - 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100%
As at 31 March 2024
No. of shares at the .
Piniistes Name beginning  of the Change during the  No. of shares at the 9% of Total Shares No, of shares at the o4 of Total Shares
year year end of the year end of the year
Northern Arc Capital Limited 3.61,000 - 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100%%
f)  Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to confract without payment being received in cash and bonus shares issued and shares

bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year

During the five years immediately preceding March 31, 2025, the Company has

(i) not allotted any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash,
(i) not issued any bonus shares,

(it} not carried out any buy back of shares.
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(Al

are in Indisn Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Other equity

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

a)

b)

€)

]

(i

(i)

Retained eamnings

Al the commencement of the year 4,262 64 3,544 64 2,631.80
Add: Profit for the year (512.90) 71800 912 84
At the end of the year 374974 4,262.64 3.544.64

Capital Redemption Reserve

At the commencement of the year 722.00 72200 12200
Add: Additions for the year - - -
At the end of the year 722.00 722.00 722,00
Other comprehensive income

Al the commencement of the year 40.67 1099 41 96
Remeasurements of defined benefit asset/ (liability) (refer note (i) below) 316 968 (10.97)
Closing balance 43.83 40.67 30.99
Total (a+h+c) 4,515,57 5,025.31 4,297.63

Nature and purpose of reserve

Retained earnings

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward from earlier years These reserve are free reserves which can be
utilised for any purpose as may be required

Capital Redemption Reserve
The capital redemption reserve was created on account of the redemption of the red ble pref: shares.

Other comprehensive income E
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities compnise actuarial gain or loss, retum on plan assets excluding interest and the effect of asset ceiling, if any.
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18 Revenune from operations

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers
Fee and commission income (refer note 34) 307804 2989 88
Interest income from financial intruments measured at FVTPL 1,539.07 71235
Net gain on fair value change - 121.54
Total 4.617.11 3,823.77
Revenue from customers
~That are recognised over a certain period of time - -
~That are recognised at a point of time 461711 382377
Geographical Market
-in India 461711 3,323.77
- outside India - -
Major products / service lines
Investment management and related services 461711 3823717
19 Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fund operating fee 428 98 43050
Reimbursement of expenses 80.53 13010
Interest on fixed deposits with banks - 3
Recovery of assets wntten of 4123 179,45
Interest on income tax refund 5038 4.16
Other income 2246 11.01
Total 623,58 758,56
20 Finance cost
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- Term loan 1,095 36 337.20
- Cash credit 2227 2587
Amortisation of fee expenses 884 =
Total 1,126.47 363.07
21 Fee and ¢ issi I
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Distribution expenses 6d1.54 918.40
Total 64 E-l 918.40
22 Net loss on fair value changes
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loss on lair value changes 1,759.54 -
Total 1,759.54 -
23 Employee benefils expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, bonus and allowances 103547 897.10
Contribution to provident and other funds {refer note 31) 66,33 60,65
Share based payments to employees (refer note 32) 129 3997
Gratuity expense (refer note 31) 19.06 2487
Staff welfare expenses 12,37 10.54
Total 1,134.52 1,033.13
24 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {refer note 9) - D.12

Total = 0.12
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25 Other
Year ended Year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Legal and professional charges 663,88 799.07
Less: Reimbursement of expense (refer note 25.1) 92.63 571.25 171.84 627.23
Operating expenses (refer note 25.2) 32331 338.92
Rent 77.77 65.76
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 25.4) 2398 24.00
Traveling and conveyance 47.95 49.02
Director sitting fee 64.68 65.90
Communication expenses 6,33 4.85
Repairs and maintenance 2245 927
Rates and taxes 0.46 19.33
Subscription charges 21.14 15.84
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 25.3) 4.12 4.28
Bank charges 1.38 1.07
Busi pr i p 7343 14.78
Provision for losses 3.10 -
Miscellaneous expenses 18.51 9.95
Total 1,259.86 1,250.20

25.1 Represents Legal and professional expense incurred on behalf of the following funds and reimbursed to the Company:

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Northern Arc Capital Limited 74.03 130,10
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund 347 10.76
[FMR Flmpact Long Term Credit Fund 1513 20.61
IFMR Flmpact Medium Term Opportunities Fund - 5.61
IFMR Flmpact Income Builder Fund - 4.76
Total 92.63 171.84
25.2 Operating expenses includes expenses incurred on behalf of the fund :
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Legal and Professional charges 305,31 326,08
Audit Fee 18.00 12.84
Total 323.31 338.92
25.3 Auditors' r ation (excluding goods and services tax)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory audit 3.00 3.50
Tax audit 1.00 0.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.12 0.28
Total 4.12 4.28
254 Corporate social responsibility (*CSR") expenditure
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 23.00 24.00
(b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 2398 24.00
(c) Amount spent during the year (in cash) :
(1) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 2398 24.00
(d) Contributions to Northern Arc Foundation (wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company incorporated under section 8 of Companies Act, 2013)* 23198 24.00
Details of other than ongoing project
(e) Carry forward balances of CSR pre-spent*
Opening balance - pre-spent / (shortfalls) - -
Amount required to be spent during the year 23.00 24.00
Amount spent during the year 2398 24.00

Closing balance - pre-spent / (shortfalls)** - =

* Contribution to Northern Arc Foundation has been spent on social activities,
* The Company has not spent any amount on ongoing projects, Accordingly, no disclosures are made in this regard.
** Excess contribution to CSR activities in a particular year cannot be carried forward to subsequent years.
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26  Income tax

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Components of income 1ax expense
A Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
Current tax expense
Current period 29943 22530
Provision for earlier years - 2549
Total current tax expense (A) 29943 150,79
Deferred tax (income) / expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (467.77) 48.62
Deferred tax exg (B) (467.77) 48,62
Income tax expense for the year (168.34) 299.41
B Tax on recog 1in Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Items that will not be reclassifed to profit or loss 1.06 3.26
Total 1.06 3.26

C R iliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate of the Compan
Vear ended Vear ended

Particualrs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax (681.24) 1,017.41
Company’s domestic tax rate (%) 25 168% 25 168%
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (171.45) 256.06
Tax effect on /of:
Tax impact of income not subject to deferred tax
Provision for Employee benefi 032 10.06
Provision for CSR 6.04 6.04
Provision for loss assels 0.78 -
Stamp duty paid for increasing authorised capital 197 =
Penal interest 0.02 1.86
Others (4.97) 28.65
Total income tax expense / (benefit) (167.28) 302.67
D Tax on amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Effective tax rate 24.56% 29.75%

Note: The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, as introduced by the Taxation laws
(A | ) Act, 2019. A dingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax and remeasured its net deferred tax asset at lower tax rate
for the year ended March 31, 2025

E Significant components and movement in deferred tax asset and liabilities

Expense / income Expense / income
As at March 31, 2024 recognised through  recognised through OCI  As at March 31, 2025

Component of Delerred tax asset / (liability)
Deferred tax assels

Property, plant and equipment

Provision for employee benefits

Fair value gain / loss and impairment of
invesiments

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Provision for impariment of financial i

profit or loss

Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

085 (0.33) 2 052
8189 (46.60) (1.06) 3423
(154.64) 514.70 3 360.07
(71.89) 467.77 (1.06) 394.82
(71.89) 467.77 (1.06) 394.82

As at March 31, 2023

Statement of profit

Other comprehensive

As at March 31, 2024

and loss income
Component of Deferred tax asset / (liability)
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment 1.36 (0.51) - 0.85
Provision for employee benefi 41.39 43.76 (3.26) 81.89
Total deferred tax assels 42.75 43.25 (3.26) 82,74
Deferred tax linbilities
Provision for impari of financial i (62.77) (91.87) - (154.64)
Total deferred tax liabilities (62.77) (91.87) - (154.64)
Net deferred tax asscts / (liabilities) (20.02) (48.62) (3.26) (71.89)
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D Fair value of fi

27 Financial instruments

A Fair value measurement

Valuation principles

Fair value 15 the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most market at the date

under current market conditions i e, exit price This is regardless of whether that price is direetly observable or d using a valuaty hnig

Measurement of fair values

Valuati hodologies of fi ial instruments not measured at Mir value

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unohservable. The hierarchy gives the highest prionity 1o
quoted prices i active markets for identical assets or liabilines and lowest priority to unobservable inputs

“The hierarchy used is as follows :

Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The fawr value for investment in mutual funds are based on their respective net asset
value ("NAV").

Level 2 — Tnputs are other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (i e as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable nputs) Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are

neither supported by prices from observable current market fransactions in the same nstrument nor are they based on avalable market data.

Fair value measurements

Financial measurements by category:

Asal Asar Asal
Particulars Hierarchy level March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Apr 1, 2023
FVTPL | Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost
Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalems * - 6242 - 002 - 3080
(b) Receivables * = 813.66 - 1,077.77 - 142487
(€) Investments
Altemate Investment Funds Level 2 11,178.59 - 14.374.13 - 333551 -
Mutual Funds Level | 147.78 - - - - -
(d) Other financial assets ¥ 7.21 - §02 + 7.26
“Total financial assets 11,326.37 583,29 14,374.13 1,085.81 3,335.51 1,462.93
Financial liabilities
(a) Payables b - 21820 - 349.10 - 58.17
(b) Borrowings ¥ - 7,560.84 - 10,098 31 = 169,43
¢) Other financial liabilities = - 449.08 - 51507 - 773.85
Total financial li - 8,228.12 - 10,962.48 - 1,001.45
*Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, trade & other receivables, other | assets, trade payables, b ings and other fi | liahilines apy their carrying

amounts largely due 1o current maturities of these instruments, Accordingly, fair value hierarchy for these categories of financial instruments have not been presented

C  Valuati hni used to d ine fair value

Significant valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
1. The fair values for investment in mutual funds are based on their respective NAV. Hence investment in mutual funds have been categorised on Level |

2. The fair values for investment in Altemative Investment Fund are based on Net Asset Value (NAV) provided by issuer fund which is arrived at based on valuation from independent
valuer for unlisted portfolio companies

| at ised cost
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are equal to their carrying amount.
Note: During the periods mentioned above, there have been no transfers amongst the hierarchy levels.

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to mantain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future develop of the busi Manag;
monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of b ing and the ad ges and secunity afforded by a sound
capital position.

The Company's adj i net debt to equity ratio is as follows:

Asatl As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Total Borrowings 7.560.84 10,098.31 169.43
Less: cash and cash equivalents (62.42) {0.02) (30.80)
Adjusted net debi T.498.42 10,098,29 138,63
Total cquity 4.876.57 5.386.31 4,658.63
Gearing ratio 1.54 1.87 0.03




Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
5 y ol ing policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

28 Financial visk management objectives and policies
Risk Management
The Company has exposure 1o the following nsks arising from financial instruments:
a) Market nsk
1) Price and Interest risk
i) Currency risk
b) Credit nsk
¢} Ligudity nsk

The Company seeks to mimimize potential adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance using vanious measures.
Fxposure ansing pn'manlay ———

Rish from Management

1) Company is exposed to market price nisk, whu.'h
anses from FVTPI
the proportion of these investments i investment
portfolio

Material within the portfolio are d
individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are
approved by the appropnate authorty

, Market risk - Price nsk and Interest nisks Note (a) |Investment in units of AIF
ii) Company 15 exposed 1o mterest rate nsk if the Far
value of future cash flows of its financial instruments
will fluctuate as a result of changes in markel interest
rales.

Interest rate nsk is the nsk of changes in fair values of]
fixed interest bearing investments because o
Muctuations in the interest rates.

Cash and cash equivalents, bank balance - deal with
Cash and cash equivalents, orgamsations with higher quality external credit ratings
bank balance, trade
Credit risk Note (b} wables, other financial | Trade receivables - Realisaton within a reasonable
assets recognised al amortised|period

cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost - continuous
|monitoring and realisation within reasonable period

e r

) i it a5, portion of surplus in cash and
Liqudity risk Note (c) bles and other obligati cash equivalents and investments in units of mutual
g = funds (refer note 29 - Maturity analysis of assels and

{liabilities) that can generally be liquidated at short notice|

{a) Market risk - Price and Interest rate

(1) Price nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, credit ratings of underlying
investments of mutual funds and altemative investment funds that the Company has invested in. The Company's exposure to price risk anses from its investments in units of mutual funds
and units of altemative investment funds that are classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31,2024 | April 1, 2023

1) Investments in mutual fund units 147.78 - -

1) Investments in Alternate Investment Fund 11,178.59 14,374.13 3,33551

Sensitivity Analysis

The table sets out the effect on profit or loss and equity due to ble possible weakening / stirengthening in prices by 5%

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 | April 1, 2023

5% increase in the prices 566.32 TI8.71 166.78

5% decrease in the prices (566.32) (718.71) (166.78)

(u) Interest rate nsk - The pany has an fing b ings as on March 31, 2025 which carries a fixed rate of interest. Therefore, the Company does not perceive any significant

exposure to interest rate risk

(b) Credit risk

Credit nsk 15 the nsk of financial loss to the Company if a or t rty to fi I fails o meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the
Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and f | assels | at 1sed cost,

Exposure to credil risk
The Company's financial assets subject to the credit loss model under IND AS 109 are cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, deposits with banks, trade and other receivables. The
carrying amount of financial aszts represents the maximum amount of credit sk exp which is aguregate of carrying amount of these financial assets measured at cost.

Particulars March 31, 2025

pril 1, 2023

Exposure 1o credit nsk (refer column for amortised cost under financial assets section of table in Note 27) 883,29 1,085.81 1,462.93

Credit nsk on cash and cash equivalents, 1s msignificant as counter parties are banks wath higher quality external credit mtings The trade and other receivables are generally realised within
reasonable period. Further, lhu (‘urnpany has not expenienced any material bad debt from these assets in the past 5 years. A fingly, credit risk exp on trade wables and other
fi | assets is li
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() Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk implies fficient ¢ash and marketable secunities and the availability of sufficient liquid assets lo meet obligations when due Due to the
nature of the business and its investments, the Company mai suffeient fexibility in ing liquidity needs by withdrawal of fixed and / or redemption of i1s investments in unils of
mutual funds.

On a regular basis, Management monitors cash forecast of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows

1‘ i

Furthermore, significant portion of the Companys revenues are eamu from management fees, which are settled on a quarterly basis and, th are readily o cash.
Additionally, the financial assets (excluding bank balance held i escrow account) and financial habilities of the Company as at March 31, 2025 are Rs. 12,209.66 lakh and Rs. 8,228 12

lakh respectvely, resulting into surplus of Rs 3,981.54 lakh of fi | assets over fi i / ly, at this stage, the impact of hquidity nisk on the Company 15 expected
to be minimal

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilites mto relevant maturity pattern based on their contractual matunities for all financial labilities.

As at March 31, 2025 Carrying Contractual cash Nows

Fi ial liabilities amount Within 12 months|After 12 months
Horrowings 7.560 84 760 84 6,800.00
Payables 21820 218.20 -
Other financial liabiliti 449.08 444908 -
Total §,228.12 1428.12 6,800.00
As at March 31, 2024 Carrying Contractual cash Nows
Financial liabilities amonnt Within 12 mnnlll_sJAl'ter 12 months
Borrowings 10,098 31 54831 9,550.00
Payables 34910 910 -
Other financial liabilities 51507 515.07 -
Total 10,962.48 141248 9,550,00
As at April 1, 2023 Carrying Contractual cash Nows
Financial liabilities amount Within 12 months After 12 months
Borrowings 169.43 169,43 -
Payables 3817 5817 -
Other financial liabilities 773.85 77185 -
Total 1,001.45 1,00145 -

Thes sparce 15 intentionally left blank
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29 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The 1able below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected 1o be recovered or settled

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1, 2023

Within 12 months| After 12 months Total Within 12 hs| After 12 months Total Within 12 months| After 12 months Total
Assels

I. Financial assets

a) Cash and cash equivalents 6242 - 6242 0.02 - 0.02 30.80 - 30.80
b) Receivables
1) Trade receivables 682 64 - 68264 892 44 - 89244 340.28 - 840,28
1) Other receivables 131.02 = 131.02 18533 - 18533 584.59 - 584,59
¢} Investments T84 16 10,542.21 11,326.37 2,789.80 11,584.33 14,374.13 219.84 311567 333551
| d) Other financial assets 3.23 398 1.21 0.04 7.98 8.02 1.46 5.80 126
1,663.47 10,546.19 12,209.66 3.867.63 11,592.31 15,459.94 1,676.97 312147 4, 798,44
1. Non-financial assets
a) Current tax assets (net) - 223,55 223,55 - 64391 643 91 - 463 80 463.80
b) Deferred tax assets (net) = 394,82 394,82 - - - - - -
¢} Property, plant and equipment 7 x - - - - - 012 0.12
d) Other non-financial assets 12218 186,70 508,88 35264 26293 615,57 411.21 300,43 71164
322.18 805.07 1,127.25 35264 906.84 1,259.48 411.21 764,35 1,175.56
Total assets 1,985.65 11,351.26 13,336.91 4,220.27 12,499.15 16,719.42 1,088.18 3,885.82 5.974.00
Liabilities
I. Financial liabilities
a) Payables
1) Trade payables 218.20 = 218.20 34910 - 349.10 58.17 - 58.17
1) Borrowings 760 84 6,800.00 7.560.84 548.31 9.550.00 10,098.31 16943 - 16943
i) Other financial habilities 449,08 - 449 08 515.07 - 515.07 773.85 - 773.85
1,428.12 6,800,000 8,228.12 141248 9,550,00 10,962.48 1,001.45 - 1,001.45
I1. Non-financial liabilities
a) Provisions 35.17 2350 58.67 6084 107.23 168.07 27 66 136,72 164.38
b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - B 71.89 71.89 - 20.02 20.02
c) Other non-financial liabilities 173.55 - 173.55 130.67 - 130,67 129,52 - 129.52
208.72 23.50 232.22 191.51 179.12 370.63 157,18 156,74 313.92
‘Total liabilities 1,636.84 6,823.50 8,460.34 1,603.99 9,729.12 11,333.11 1,158.63 156.74 1,315.37

This space is intentionatly left blank
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30 Conti Liabilities and capital i (1o the extent not provided for)

As at March 31,2025 As a1 March 31, 2024
Clasms agmnst the Company not acknow ledged as debt

= Income tax related manters = =

31 Employee Benefits
The Company has classificd various bencfits proveded 1o its cmployees as under:
Asat March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(1} Defined contribution plans
() Provident Fund 5759 Ax48
{b) Employvee State Insurance = .

(11) Defined Benefit Plans
The gratuity plan is govemed by the Pavment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an emplovee who has completed 4 wears and 190 davs of service 1s enuitled 1o specific
benefits. The kevel of benefits provided depends on the employees's length of service and salary at retirement age

Details of actuarial valuation of gratuity pursuant to the Ind AS 19

A, Change in present value of March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of obligations at the beginming of the vear 11813 L350
Interest cost 456 778
Current service cost 1451 1652
Past service cost - 058
Transfer in-value of obligations 1971 -
Benefits scettled (124.72) (3.31)
Actuanal (gain)/ loss (4.22) (12.894)
Present value of obligations at the end of the year 2197 118.13
B. Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the vear = ”
Expected retum on plan assets " %t
Actuarnial gain/ (loss) - =
Employer contributions 12472 331
Benefits settled {124.72) (3.31)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year % %

C. Actual Return on plan assets

Expected retum on plan asscts - -
Actuarial gain/ {loss) on plan assets -

Actual return on plan assets = =

D. Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets
Change in projected henefit obligation

Present value of obligations at the end of the war 2797 118.13
Fair value of plan assets = =
Net liability recognised in balance sheet 2797 118,13
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

E. Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss

Current service cost 1451 16,52
Interest on obligation 4.56 778
Past service cost - 057
Expected retum on plan assets x =
19.07 24.87
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
F.R ement gains/(l in other prehensive income
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the vear (4.22) (12.94)
Transfer from holding company (on aceount of emplovee transfer) x: >
Total included in 'employee benefits" (4.22) (12.94)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
G. Assumptions at balance
Discount rate 6.37% 6.95%
Salary escalation B.00%% B00%
Montality rate Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Altrition mile 63 .60% 33.00%
Notes:

a)  The estimates in fature salary increases. considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, scniority promotion and other relevant factors. such as supply and
demand in the employee market.
b)  Discount rate is based on the prevailing market viclds of Indian Government Bonds as at the balanee sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation
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31 Employee benefits (continued)

H. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defincd
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rane (1% movement) 2766 2828 11547 12092
Future salary growth (1% movement) 2840 2754 12139 11497
Attrition Rate (1% movement) 2790 2804 11793 11834
1. Maturity analysis of benelit payments
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expected benefits for vear | 1742 IRE5
Expected benefits for year 2 122 2501
Expected benefits for vear 3 ENE] 20,89
Expected benefits for vear 4 131 1549
Expected bencfits for year 5 a2 2128
Next ve wars (iR} 13.40
1. The liability for compensated absences recognized under
Particulars As al March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024
MNon current emplosee benefit obligations (Refer note 14) 1191 3154
Current emplovee benefit obligations (Refer note 14) 1879 1840
Total 30,70 49.94

This spece is itentionally leff blank
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Employee stock option plan (ESOP)

Northern Are Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006 - (“Scheme 17)

The scheme was approved by special resolution passed on Oct 7. 2016 by the sharcholders of the holding company at the Extraordinary General Meeting The Northen Arc Capital
Emplosee Stock Option Scheme 2016 is applicable 1o all eligible empioyees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The options were issued on Mar |, 2017, with an exercise price of Rs. [0
The optiens vests over o period of 4 years in 41-20:20: 20 proportion.

Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006 = (*Scheme 117)

The scheme was approved by special resolution passed on Oct 7. 2016 by the sharcholders of the holding company at the Extraordinary General Mecting. The Northem Arc Capital
Emplovee Stock Option Scheme 2016 is applicable to all cligible cmpl of the Company and its subsidiancs. The options were issued in two batches, with an exercise price ranging
between Rs. 110 1o Rs. 121, The eptions vests cqually over a period of 3 years.

Northern Are Employee Stock Option Plan 2008 — (“Scheme 1H7)

The scheme was approved by special resolution passed on Jul 25, 2018 by the sharcholders of the holding company at the Extrmordinary. General Mecting. The Northern Are Capital
Emplovee Stock Option Scheme 2018 is applicable to all cligible employees of the Company and its subsidiarics. The options were issued on Jul 28, 2018, with an exercise price ranging
between Bs 181 10 Rs. 275 The oplions vesis over a peniod of 4 years in 3003100440 proportion.

Northern Are Emplnyee Stock Option Scheme 2022 - (“Scheme= TV)

The scheme was approved by special resolution passed on Sep 13. 2023 by the sharcholders of the holding company at the Extraordinary General Mecting. The Northern Arc Capital
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 15 applicable 1o all eligible employecs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The options were issued in two batches. with an excreise price of Rs.
275, The options vests cqually over a peniod of 4 vears

Northern Are Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 — (“Scheme— 11 B™)

The scheme was approved by special resolution passed on Sep 13, 2023 by the sharcholders of the holding company at the Exiraordinary General Meeting. The Northern Are Capital
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 is applicable to all eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiarics. The options were issued on Sep 9. 2021, with an exercise price of Rs.
275 The aoptions vesis equally over a period of 5 years

Northern Are Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 - (*Scheme— IVB™)

The scheme was approved by special resolution passed on Sep 13, 2023 by the sharcholders of the holding company at the Extraordinary General Mecting. The Northern Are Capital
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 is applicable 10 all eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiarics. The options were issued in multiple baiches. with an cxercise price of Rs.
275. The options vests cqually over a period of 4 years

Options outstanding under various Schemes

As at March 31, 2025

Plan Scheme | Scheme 11 Scheme 111 Scheme 1V Scheme 1B Scheme IVB
Gram date Various Various WVarious Various WVarious Various
MNumber of options - 3.34.000 166 659 L% 000 35000 0000

Exercise price in Rs. 1 i 121 181 10 275 ) 75 275

Vesting penod o4 years 1 te 3 years 1 to3 years | 1o years I 10 3 years 1o years
Option Price 113,65 39284089 9233 63,74 - 125 BR-144 82
Weighted average exercise price in Rs tieog 13470 190,75 275.00 275,00 275.00
Weighted average remaining contractual

life {in years) - - - L7 - L75
Mesting condition Time based vesting

As at March 31, 2024

Plin Scheme [ Scheme 11 Scheme 111 Scheme 1B Scheme 1IVB
Grant date Various Various Various Various Various
Number ol options 3 195,101 2.29.734 AL.000 5,0
Exercisc price in Rs. L1 1w 275 181 1o 188 275 275
Vesting period 1 1o 4 years I 1o 5 years 1103 vears 110 3 years I to 4 years
Option Price 11363 39284089 65.77-9233 160,14 128 88-136,04
‘Weighted average exercise price in Rs. 10,00 R948 19232 275.00 27500
Weighted average ini |

lifie (in years) - - IR 3 158
Vesting condition Time based vesting

Reconciliation of outstanding optivns

The details of options granted under (he above schemes are as follows.

Particulars Number of aptions
Asal Asut

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Outstanding at beginning of year 560,734 334318
Forfeited during the year 1.30.000 5000
Excrcised during the year 181,366 24,000
Granted during the vear 138,000 235316
Transfer from holding company 3.36,331 -
Owistanding as of end of year 743,699 560,734

Vested and exercisable as at end of year

Fair value methodology

The fair value of aptions have been cstimated on the dates of cach grant using the Black-Scholes model. Accordingly. the holding company had considered the volaulity of the stock price
based on historical volonlity of similar listed enlerpriscs. The various inputs considered in the pricing model for the stock options granied by the Company during the year are as follows:

As at As al
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Dhvidend vicld = -
Historical Volanl 3796% - 39.33% 48 34%
Rask free interest rale 68T 566%
Expected life of the option {in years} 300 5.1-58

Volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price has Muctuated or is expected to Muctuate during a period. The measure of volatility used in the Black - Scholes Model is the
lised standard deviation ol contt 1y pounded rates OF return on the stock over a penod of time.
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33 Segment reporting

Operating segments
The Company's operations predominantly relate to managing Alternative investment funds. The information relating to this operating segment is reviewed regularly by

the Company's Board of Directors {Chief Operating Decision Maker) to make d about 1 10 be all d and to assess its performance. The CODM
ders the entire busi of the Company on a holistic basis to make operating decisions and thus there are no segregated operating segments. The CODM of the
Company reviews the operating results of the Company as a whole and therefore not more than one reportable is required to be disclosed by the Company as

envisaged by Ind AS 108 Operating Segments

The Company does not have any separate geographic segment other than India As such there are no separate reporiable segments as per IND AS 108 Operating
Segments.

34 Related party disclosures

| party and tr ions are as identified by the management.

Holding Company :

|
|
Northern Are Capital Limnted
Fellow Subsidiaries :
Northern Are Investment Adviser Services Private Limited
Northern Arc Securities Private Limited
Pragati Finserv Limited
Northern Are Foundation

Member of Group (Associate of holding com pany)
Northern Arc Emerging Corporates Bond Fund

Key management personnel

Kshama Fernandes, Executive non-independent Chairperson

Ashish Mehrotra, Non-executive Director

Chaitanya Pande, Non-executive Director

Theodoor Brouwers, Non-executive Director up to Oct 20, 2024
Nicholas Anthony Moon, N we Director up to May 1, 2024
Bhavdeep Chandrakant Bhat, Chief Executive Officer since Jun 12, 2024
Ravi Vikkadala, Chief Executive Officer up to Jun 11, 2024

Vishal Garg, Chief Financial Officer since Jul 28, 2023*

Kaly daram C, Chief Fi ial Officer up to Jul 27, 2023*

* Remuneration is paid by the holding pany to the Chief Fi 1al Officer

A Transaction with related parties during the year:

As at As at

Related Party Transaction
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Northern Are Capital Limited Interest expense 624.67 363.07
Fee expenses 36848 404.12
Reimbursement of expenses T4.03 13010
Loans taken 3,421.77 14,261.28
Loans repaid 13,226.02 433241
ESOP issued 1.29 3997
Purchase of Class A units of IFMR Fimpact Long Term Credit Fund - 2,070.43
Purchase of Class A units of Northem Arc India Impact Fund - 6,514.14
Purchase of Class A units of Northern Arc Income Builder Fund-Series 11 - 1,437.63

Naorthern Arc Foundation Corporate social responsibility (“CSR") expenditure 2398 24.00

Northern Arc Emerging Corporate Investment in Class A4 units 200.00 100.00

Bond Fund Investment in Class A5 units 2,000.00 -
Investment in Class A7 units 2,150.00 1,500.00
Investment in Class B units = 500.00
Fee income 865.59 443.63
Income from investment in AIF 65.84 53.69
Fund operating fee 126.65 63.01

Kshama Fernandes Remuneration® 200.00 13030
Bhavdeep Chandrakant Bhatt Remuneration* 135.08 -
Ravi Vukkadala Remuneration®* 29.85 201.54

*+ Amount attributable to post employment benefits have not been disclosed as the same cannot be dentified distinetly in the actuarial valuation.
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B Outstanding balances with related parties as on balance sheet date:

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

o As at Asat
Related P Qustanding bala
St any eutdid March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Northern Are Capital Limited Equity share capital 361.00 361.00
Payable towards shared service cost 20194 22586
Borrowings - 10,098 31
Other receivables 1971 58.50
ESOP payable 1.29 3749
Northern Arc Emerging Bond Investment in class B(FV) 523.18 524 28
Fund Fee income receivable 18355 172 88
Fund operating fee recevable 2837 2453
Bhavdeep Chandrakant Bhatt Employee stock option (in units) 1,10,000 -
Ravi Vukkadala Employee stock option (in units) - 2,16,568
Kshama Fernandes Employee stock option (in units) 8,11,037 4,38 666
C  The Company has been appointed as the 12

a) by the Trustee of IFMR Fimpact Long Term Credit Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.50%
per annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B umit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee income’ under Note 18

b} by the Trustee of Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund ("the Fund”), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of
0.40%, 0.974%, 0.40%, 0.70%, 0.50%, 0.974%, 0.70% and 0.40% per annum on the Assets under management of the Class A, Class Al, Class A2, Class A3, Class
Ad, Class A5, Class A6 and Class B unit holders of the Fund respectively and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note 18.

¢) by the Trustee of Northern Arc India Impact Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives 2 fee of 1.50%, 1.50%,
1.00%, 1.00% and | 24% per annum on the Assets under management of the Class A, Class B1, Class B4, Class B6 and Class B7 unit holders of the Fund respectively
and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note 18,

d) by the Trustee of Northern Arc Income Builder Fund Series 11 ("the Fund®), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of
1.5% per annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee Income’ under Note 18

e} by the Trustee of Northern Are Emerging Corporate Bond Fund ("the Fund"), AmicorpTrustee India Private Limited, for which the Company receives 2
fee of 1.5%, 1.25%, 100P%, 1.5%, 1.25%, 1.00% 1.75% and 1.00% per annum on the capital committed by the Class Al, Class A2, Class A3, Class A4, Class A3,
Class A6, Class A7 and Class B unit holders of the Fund respectively and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note |8,

f) by the Trustee of Northern Arc Finserv Fund ("the Fund"), Mitcon Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited, for which the Comyj receives fee of
1.25%, 1.15%, 1.75%, 1.5% and 1.25% per annum on the capital committed by the Class Al, Class A2, Class A3, Class Ad, and Class B unit holders of the Fund
respectively and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note 18

2) by the Trustee of Northern Are Fintech NBFC Fund | ("the Fund"), Mitcon Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited, for which the Company receives nt
fee of 0.50%, and 0.50% per annum on the capital committed by the Class Aand Class B unit holders of the Fund respectively and disclosed as 'Fee Income’ under
Note 18

h) by the Trustee of IFMR Fimpact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Comp receives fee

of 1.50%, per annum on the capital committed by the Class Aand Class B unit holders of the Fund respectively and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note 18, The
Company has not earned any management fees from the Fund during the financial year ended March 31, 2025

35 Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted:

Year ended Year ended

Particul
il March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Farnings/ (loss)

Net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity sharcholders for calculation of basic EPS (512.90) 718.00
Net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of diluted EPS (512.90) T18.00
Shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the year 3,61,000 3,61,000
Shares issued during the year - -
Total number of equity shares owtstanding at the end of the year 3,61,000 3,61,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic EPS 3,61,000 3,61,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of diluted EPS 3,61,000 3,61,000
Face value per share 100.00 100.00

Earning per share
Basic (in rupees) (142.08) 198 89
Diluted (in rupees) (142 08) 198,80
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36 Analytical Ratios

Ratios Numerator Denominator  March 31, 2025 Y variance

(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR)* g : E .

(b) Tier | CRAR * . & _ }
{e) Tier Il CRAR * . - E 7
(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio (no-of times)
[Total Financial Assets (within 12 months)Total Financial Liabilities 1,663.47 1,428.12 116 -57%
(within 12 months)]
This has idecreased as Fi ial asset bal and specifically,
investments which are maturing within 12 months from the reporting
i date including new purch , have changed
I
I
Ratios Numerator Denominator  March 31, 2024 % variance

(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR* : - ) )

(b) Tier | CRAR * - i = =
(c) Tier Il CRAR * - - - -
(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio (no-of times)

| Total Financial Assets (within 12 months)/Total Financial Liabilities 3,867.63 1,412.48 274 64%
(within 12 months)]

This has increased as Financial asset balances and specifically,

imvestments which are maturing within 12 months from the reporting

date including new purchases, have changed.

Ratios Numerator Denominator March 31, 2023 % variance

(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR)* - - N -

(b) Tier | CRAR * - m = T
(c) Tier Il CRAR * - - - -

(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio (no-of times)

[Total Financial Assets (within 12 months)Total Financial Liabilities 1,676.97 1,001.45 1.67 -55%
(within 12 months)]

This has d | as Financial assct and specifically,

investments which are maturing within 12 months from the reporting

date i new p , have

* Note: Since the Company is not in lending business. it does not have any credit exposure. Hence, these ratios are not applicable to the Company.
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{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37 Other Statutory Information
a The Company does not have any Benami properly, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami

pmpcrl_v.
b The Company is not declared as wilful defaulier by any bank of financial institution or other lender.
¢ The Company has not entered into any transaction with Company struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013,
d  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
e The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
I There Company has not provided any loans to directors or has investments made or given guarantees and securities in respect provisions of Section 185

and 186 of the Companies Act 2016.

g No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

h The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or enlities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

i The Company does not have any transactions which were not recorded in the books of account, but offered as income during the year in the income tax
assessment.

i The Company is maintaining its book of account in electronic mode and these books of account are accessible at all times and the back-up of books of
account has been kept in servers physically located in India on a daily basis from the applicability date of the Accounts Rules, i.e. August 5, 2022
onwards.

k  The Ministry ol Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts
Rules), 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its
books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log
of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The
Company, in respect of fi ial year cc ing on 1 April 2024 have used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
softwares. Further, there were no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the year. The audit trail has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

| The Company has not declared/ paid any dividend duning the year.
m  The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

n  The Company does not have any step down subsidiaries hence complaince of layer of companies are not applicable.

o Presentation of financial statements - “The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification dated October 11, 2018 issued Division 111 of
Schedule 111, which provides the format for financial statements of Non-Banking Financial Companies, as defined in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015. The Company being NBFC is required to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Division 111 of Schedule III of the
Act.

Accordingly, the corresponding fipures as at 01 April 2023 and as at and for the year ended March 2024 have been restated in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 8 to correct the presentation error in the reported financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024,

Consequent to such correction of error, there has been no impact on the reported loss, total comprehensive income, earmings per share for the year ended
31 March 2024 and total equity as at 31 March 2024 or 1 April 2023,

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acconntants Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 001076N/N500013 CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064
Murad D. Daruwalla Aslish Meh / Kshama Fernandes
Partner Director / Director
ICAI Membership No. 043334 o DIN:07277318 DIN:02539429
: Place ; Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025 Date : May 14,2025
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Bhavdeep Chandrakant Bhatt Vishal Garg
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai ———" Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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